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(Bail in Domestic Violence Casea)

Senator Bolques, good dayand thank you forincluding the Department ofJustice in this important

discussion.

The Office of the Attorney General was asked to review the proposed amendment ofT. 16V.I.C.

§§99(b)(1 -3) (Bail in Domestic Violence Cases); see yellow paper dated 9/23/2024.

At present, in the Virgin Islands, bail in domestic violence cases is guided by 16 V.I.C. §99(b):

“A peeaon accented fot or changed witha ceimc that constitutes domestic violence aAaffbe

admitted tobail aa follows.. .”

(1)$1,000; no 10% fF no prior DV crinviction * no use/Ûrcatcned use of weapon+ no harm

(2)$5,000; no 10% II'no prior DV conviction+ no use/threatened use of weapon+ harm

OR i pri‹ir DV conviction+ no use/threatened use of weapon+ no harm

(3)$15,000; no 10% IN no prior DV conviction + use or threatencd use of weapon involved

OF I prior DV convicfion + harm {’substantial bodñy harm’)

OR 1 pnor DV conviction+ use or threatened use of weapon inwulved

OR 2 prior DV convictions

The proposed amendment adds the language “notjess Nan”prior tothebail amounts setforth in

§99(b)(1), (2) and (3).

The Office of the Attome Geiyezal sut›qort _9dj;(inIp ethgaefntte gthena the Virei_iy

lalands bail laws indomestic violence cagea.

Typically, ina domesdc violence case, bail is set the morning after arrest by the Magistrate Judge.

Upon information and belief, the Magistrate Judges do not, at present, consistendy apply 16 V.I.C.

$59(b)(1-3); the “»s/ less than” language in this proposed amendment looks to correct this issue.



In some instances, judges have been deviating from thecurrent law by assigning bail to DV

defendants upon lesser financial conditions than the law provides. The proposed “pdf her ha»”

language should make theLegislature's intent to seta zvioizvao bail clear and bring end to this

practice.

In other instances, the judges have been interpreting the current law asa limitation on the Court's

authority to set bail in DV cases. This has ledto dangerous defendants being assigned artificially

low bail due to the DV designation. For example, inan Attempted Murder case (no DV

designation), bail is generally set by the Court at) 100,000. If the same attempted murder was

charged with the “DV” designation, the current law, 16 V.I.C. §§99(b)(1-3), would apply, and the

Court may setthe defendant's bail at$ 15,000. The proposed “a«? hn flan ”language makes the

Legislature's intent to seta minimum bail clear and provides ample authority for the judge to tailof the

bail to the facts and circumstances of the defendant. The “not lesa than” amendments could be

further strengthened ifthe Legislature added language tospecifically indicate that, in

domestic violence cases, “the Court shall apply the highest applicable bail based upon the

charges, with no 10% provision.”

S estio sfit e co s de o : Typically, ina DV case, the Defendant's conditions for pretrial

bail release include “no contact” with the victim. Unfortunately,a small number ofoffenders

disregard the Court’s order and reoffend, sometimes within days (i.e.a record DC r3n›gr, afar/i a«/ a»

bail ora D L" mum). The Legislature could provide forimmediate revocation of bail upona showing

of probable cause in such repeat offender cases and could further imposea presumption against bail

(i.e. defense counsel would be required to demonstrate to the Court that the defendant is not

dangerous to thevictim to secure his/her release). Such an approach would enhance thesafety of

DV victims and detec DV stalking behavior by defendants. Please note, the Legislature could also

impose mandatory bail conditions in DV cases, for example, by making anger maitageni4nt/ batterrr

interrrntioiia required term of pre-trial release in domestic violence abuse cases.

Thank you forincluding the Department ofJustice in this important discussion.

Sincerely,

William \ .'\pp eton Jr, F.sq

Deputv Attorney General


